
AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH 
THURSDAY JUNE 16, 2016 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
415 DIAMOND STREET 

 
 

I. OPENING SESSION 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Salute to the Flag 
 

II.   APPROVAL OF ORDER OF AGENDA 
   
III.   CONSENT CALENDAR 

Routine business items, except those formally noticed for public hearing (agendized as either a “Routine 
Public Hearing” or “Public Hearing”), or those items agendized as “Old Business” or “New Business” are 
assigned to the Consent Calendar. The Commission Members may request that any Consent Calendar 
item(s) be removed, discussed, and acted upon separately. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will 
be taken up immediately following approval of remaining Consent Calendar items. Remaining Consent 
Calendar items will be approved in one motion. 

 

4. Approval of Affidavit of Posting for the Planning Commission meeting of June 16, 2016. 

5. Approval of the following minutes:  Regular Meeting of May 19, 2016. 

6. Receive and file the Strategic Plan Update of May 17, 2016. 

7. Receive and file written communications. 

 
IV. AUDIENCE OATH 
 

V.  EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
This section is intended to allow all officials the opportunity to reveal any disclosure or ex parte 
communication about the following public hearings.  

 

VI. EXCLUDED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

8. A Public Hearing for consideration of an Exemption Declaration and Amendment to a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of an existing micro-brewery with an ancillary 
tasting area on property located within an Industrial-Commercial (IC-1) zone. 
 

APPLICANT:   Tom Dunbabin, dba King Harbor Brewing Co. 
PROPERTY OWNER:           Gagos Properties, Ltd 
LOCATION:              2907 182nd Street 
CASE NO.:   2016-06-PC-012 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve with conditions 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA   
JUNE 16, 2016 
PAGE 2 

9. A Public Hearing for consideration of an Exemption Declaration and a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow the operation of a baseball training facility on property located within an Industrial-
Commercial (IC-1) zone. 
 

APPLICANT:   Drew Van Orden, dba Game Seven 
PROPERTY OWNER:           Gagos Properties, Ltd 
LOCATION:              1306 Kingsdale Aveue 
CASE NO.:   2016-06-PC-013 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve with conditions 
 

10. A Public Hearing for consideration of an Exemption Declaration and a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow the operation of an automobile sales lot on property located within a Commercial (C-
2B) zone. 
 

APPLICANT:   Platinum Autohaus 
PROPERTY OWNER:           Sieghardus Sylla 
LOCATION:              600 N. Pacific Coast Highway 
CASE NO.:   2016-06-PC-014 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve with conditions 
 

11. A Public Hearing for consideration of an Exemption Declaration, Conditional Use Permit, 
Planning Commission Design Review, Coastal Development Permit, and Vesting Tentative 
Parcel Map No. 74219 for the construction of a new mixed-use project consisting of 12 
residential apartment units and 5,938-square feet of commercial development on property 
located within a Mixed-Use (MU-3C) zone, in the Coastal Zone. 
 

APPLICANT:   Avenue I Group, LLC 
PROPERTY OWNER:           Same as applicant 
LOCATION:              219 Avenue I 
CASE NO.:   2016-06-PC-015 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve with conditions 

 
VIII. OLD BUSINESS 

Items continued from previous agendas. 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 

Items for discussion prior to action. 
 

12. Proposed 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Program: Finding of Consistency with the General 
Plan. 

                       RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution for Finding of Consistency 
 
X. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 This section is intended to provide members of the public with the opportunity to comment on any subject that does not 

appear on this agenda for action. This section is limited to 30 minutes. Each speaker will be afforded three minutes to 
address the Commission. Each speaker will be permitted to speak only once. Written requests, if any, will be considered 
first under this section. 

 

XI. COMMISSION ITEMS AND REFERRALS TO STAFF 
 Referrals to staff are service requests that will be entered in the City’s Customer Service Center for action. 

 

XII. ITEMS FROM STAFF 
 

XIII. COUNCIL ACTION ON PLANNING COMMISSION MATTERS 



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA   
JUNE 16, 2016 
PAGE 3 

 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Redondo Beach will be a Regular Meeting to 
be held at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, July 21, 2016 in the Redondo Beach City Council Chambers, 415 
Diamond Street, Redondo Beach, California. 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 415 
Diamond Street, Door C, Redondo Beach, Ca. during normal business hours. In addition, such writings 
and documents will be posted, time permitting, on the City’s website at www.redondo.org. 

It is the intention of the City of Redondo Beach to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, the City will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk's Office at (310) 318-0656 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting to inform 
us of your particular needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time 
if you will need accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 

An agenda packet is available 24 hours at www.redondo.org under the City Clerk and during City Hall 
hours, agenda items are also available for review in the Planning Department. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

The Planning Commission has placed cases, which have been recommended for approval by the Planning 
Department staff, and which have no anticipated opposition, on the Consent Calendar section of the 
agenda.  Any member of the Planning Commission may request that any item on the Consent Calendar 
be removed and heard, subject to a formal public hearing procedure, following the procedures adopted by 
the Planning Commission. 
 

All cases remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved by the Planning Commission by adopting 
the findings and conclusions in the staff report, adopting the Exemption Declaration or certifying the 
Negative Declaration, if applicable to that case, and granting the permit or entitlement requested, subject 
to the conditions contained within the staff report. 
 

Cases which have been removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard immediately following approval 
of the remaining Consent items, in the ascending order of case number. 
 

RULES PERTAINING TO ALL PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
(Section 6.1, Article 6, Rules of Conduct) 

 
 

1. No person shall address the Commission without first securing the permission of the Chairperson; 
provided, however, that permission shall not be refused except for a good cause. 

 

2. Speakers may be sworn in by the Chairperson. 
 

3. After a motion is passed or a hearing closed, no person shall address the Commission on the 
matter without first securing permission of the Chairperson. 

 

4. Each person addressing the Commission shall step up to the lectern and clearly state his/her name 
and city for the record, the subject he/she wishes to discuss, and proceed with his/her remarks. 

 

5. Unless otherwise designated, remarks shall be limited to three (3) minutes on any one agenda 
item. The time may be extended for a speaker(s) by the majority vote of the Commission. 

 

6. In situations where an unusual number of people wish to speak on an item, the Chairperson may 
reasonably limit the aggregate time of hearing or discussion, and/or time for each individual 

http://www.redondo.org/
http://www.redondo.org/


PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA   
JUNE 16, 2016 
PAGE 4 

speaker, and/or the number of speakers. Such time limits shall allow for full discussion of the item 
by interested parties or their representative(s). Groups are encouraged to designate a 
spokesperson who may be granted additional time to speak. 

 

7. No person shall speak twice on the same agenda item unless permission is granted by a majority 
of the Commission. 

 

8. Speakers are encouraged to present new evidence and points of view not previously considered, 
and avoid repetition of statements made by previous speakers. 

 

9. All remarks shall be addressed to the Planning Commission as a whole and not to any member 
thereof. No questions shall be directed to a member of the Planning Commission or the City staff 
except through, and with the permission of, the Chairperson. 

 

10. Speakers shall confine their remarks to those which are relevant to the subject of the hearing.  
Attacks against the character or motives of any person shall be out of order.  The Chairperson, 
subject to appeal to the Commission, shall be the judge of relevancy and whether character or 
motives are being impugned. 

 

11. The public participation portion of the agenda shall be reserved for the public to address the 
Planning Commission regarding problems, question, or complaints within the jurisdiction of the 
Planning Commission. 

 

12. Any person making personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks, or who shall become boisterous 
while addressing the Commission, shall be forthwith barred from future audience before the 
Commission, unless permission to continue be granted by the Chairperson. 

 

13. The Chairperson, or majority of the members present, may at any time request that a police officer 
be present to enforce order and decorum.  The Chairperson or such majority may request that the 
police officer eject from the place of meeting or place under arrest, any person who violates the 
order and decorum of the meeting. 

 

14. In the event that any meeting is willfully interrupted so as to render the orderly conduct of such 
meeting unfeasible and order cannot be restored by the removal of individuals willfully interrupting 
the meeting, the Commission may order the meeting room cleared and continue its session in 
accordance with the provisions of Government Code subsection 54957.9 and any amendments.  

 
 

APPEALS OF PLANNING COMMISSION DECISIONS: 
 

All decisions of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council.  Appeals must be filed, in 
writing, with the City Clerk’s Office within ten (10) days following the date of action of the Planning 
Commission.  The appeal period commences on the day following the Commission’s action and concludes 
on the tenth calendar day following that date.  If the closing date for appeals falls on a weekend or holiday, 
the closing date shall be the following business day.  All appeals must be accompanied by an appeal fee 
of 25% of original application fee up to a maximum of $500.00 and must be received by the City Clerk’s 
Office by 5:00 p.m. on the closing date. 
 

Planning Commission decisions on applications which do not automatically require City Council review 
(e.g. Zoning Map Amendments and General Plan Amendments), become final following conclusion of the 
appeal period, if a written appeal has not been filed in accordance with the appeal procedure outline above. 
 
No appeal fee shall be required for an appeal of a decision on a Coastal Development Permit application. 





   Minutes 
Regular Meeting 

Planning Commission 
May 19, 2016 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Rodriguez at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 415 Diamond Street. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Commissioners Present: Biro, Mitchell, Sanchez, Ung, Chair Rodriguez 
Commissioners Absent: Vice Chair Goodman, Commissioner Gaian 
Officials Present: Aaron Jones, Community Development Director 
 Anita Kroeger, Senior Planner 
 Cheryl Park, Assistant City Attorney 

Genny Ochoa, Recording Secretary 
 

SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
Commissioner Ung led the Commissioners and audience in a Salute to the Flag. 
 
APPROVAL OF ORDER OF AGENDA 
Moved by Commissioner Sanchez, seconded by Commissioner Ung, to approve the 
Order of Agenda as presented. 
 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Biro, Mitchell, Sanchez, Ung, Chair Rodriguez   
NAYS:    None    ABSTAINED:  None    
ABSENT:  Vice Chair Goodman, Commissioner Gaian      
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
4. Approval of Affidavit of Posting for the Planning Commission meeting of May 19, 

2016. 
 
5.  Approval of the following minutes:  Regular Meeting of April 21, 2016. 

6.  Receive and file the Strategic Plan Update of April 19, 2016. 

7.  Receive and file written communications. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Mitchell, seconded by Commissioner Sanchez, to approve the 
Consent Calendar Items, as presented: 
 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Biro, Mitchell, Sanchez, Ung, Chair Rodriguez   
NAYS:    None    ABSTAINED:  None    
ABSENT:  Vice Chair Goodman, Commissioner Gaian      
 
AUDIENCE OATH 
Chair Rodriguez asked that those people in the audience who wished to address the 
Commission on any of the hearing issues stand and take the following oath: 
 

Do each of you swear or affirm that the testimony you shall give  
shall be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 2 
  

Audience members stood and answered, “I do.” 
 
EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
Commissioner Biro disclosed meeting with the applicant’s representative to discuss Item 
8. 
 
Chair Rodriguez disclosed discussing Item 8 with citizens. 
 
Commissioner Sanchez disclosed communicating with staff to receive clarification and 
requested video and transcripts of the November 19, 2015 Planning Commission 
meeting for his review.    
 
EXCLUDED CONSENT CALENDAR – NONE 
 
Commissioner Mitchell recused himself from Item 8 due to potential conflict of interest. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
8. Public Hearing to review and make recommendations to the City Council regarding 

a request for a (Revised) Mitigated Negative Declaration/Initial Environmental Study 
(IS-MND), and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (including modified 
mitigation measures), a Conditional Use Permit, Design Review, Landscape and 
Irrigation Plan, Sign Review, and a Minor Subdivision (Vesting Tentative Tract Map 
No. 72662) for a revised mixed-use project with 146 residential apartment units, and 
approximately 23,800 square feet of commercial space with 578 parking spaces at a 
maximum height of three stories, with an average height of 33 feet and a maximum 
height of 42 feet above existing grade, and the renovation of an existing 110-room 
hotel, on property located within a Mixed Use (MU-3A) zone. 
 
APPLICANT:   Legado Redondo, LLC 
PROPERTY OWNER: Same as applicant 
LOCATION: 1700 S. Pacific Coast Highway 
CASE NO.:  2016-05-PC-011 
RECOMMENDATION:   Review project and provide recommendations for the City 

Council 
 

Chair Rodriguez reminded the audience that the Commission would be making a 
recommendation to City Council on the proposed project and the recommendation would 
not be a final decision. 
  
Moved by Commissioner Sanchez, seconded by Commissioner Ung, to: 
 

Open the Public Hearing and receive and file all documents regarding Case No. 
2016-05-PC-011. 

 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Biro, Mitchell, Sanchez, Ung, Chair Rodriguez   
NAYS:    None    ABSTAINED:  None    
ABSENT:  Vice Chair Goodman, Commissioner Gaian      



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 3 
  

Community Development Director Jones reported technical difficulties (with the 
PowerPoint presentation), however there would be video record of the slide 
presentation. 
 
Senior Planner Anita Kroeger reported a revision to staff’s report: page three, last 
paragraph, revise the City Council appeal hearing date to April 5, 2016. 
 
Senior Planner Kroeger reviewed staff’s report which included: 
 
Purpose of the Public Hearing 

 Direction from City Council (April 5, 2016) 
 Council directed Planning Commission to review/make recommendation on  

146-unit & 23,000 SF commercial version 
 Planning Commission recommendation to be reported to City Council at a 

continued Appeal Hearing – June 14, 2016 
 

Community Concerns 
 Traffic – congestion, circulation, effectiveness of mitigation 
 Parking & Safety – underground parking, pedestrian crossings 
 Compatibility – mass, height & scale 
 Design – undesirable Contemporary design 
 Housing Tenure – rental units versus owned units 
 Noise – increase impacts 
 Hotel – no renovation plans submitted 

 
Additional Concerns voiced at City Council Appeal Hearing – April 5, 2016 

 Hotel – no renovation or operation plans provided 
 Density – still too many residential units 
 Preserve ficus tree on PCH – adjust the plans accordingly 
 Vehicular Safety on PV Blvd – visibility with 2 new driveways  

 
149-Unit Version vs 146-Unit Version 

 Residential Units:  reduced from 149 to 146 
 Commercial SF:  reduced from 37,600 to 23,800 
 Predominant Height:  reduced from 38’ to 33’ 
 Number of stories 
 Open Space 
 Parking 
 Architecture: modified from Contemporary to Mediterranean 

 
Project Traffic Trip Generation 

 Reduction in commercial space results in 68% decrease in trip generation 
 
Additional Considerations 

 146-unit proposal addresses some concerns regarding: 
 Height, Mass & Scale, Architecture & Traffic 

 
 Preservation of ficus tree would require: 

 Arborist Report, Adjustment to Traffic Mitigation Measures & Approval of 
Caltrans (DOT) 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 4 
  

 Traffic Safety & Visibility Concerns on PV Blvd: 
 Could be mitigated by redesign of medians & striping 

 
 Legado’s Response: 

 5:12 pm, May 5, 2016, Legado email to Planning stating their legal counsel 
recommended against providing additional information/revisions 

 
Summary 

 Staff’s opinion – 146-unit proposal meets criteria for approval of CUP, PCDR, 
Sign Review & VTTM 

 146-unit version addresses to some extent concerns about traffic, compatibility & 
design 

 Legado failed to provide design & operational plans for hotel 
 Legado unwilling to address concern for ficus tree 
 Mitigation can address traffic concerns on PV Blvd 

 
Recommendation 

 That the Planning Commission recommend to City Council either: 
 Approve the 146-unit version along with additional condition regarding traffic   

medians & striping on PV Blvd; or 
 Deny the 146-unit version 
 

Commissioner Biro recommended edits to: (1) page 3, bullet 6 to read November 24, 
2015, and (2) page 8 regarding guest parking to read 48 spaces. 
 
Chair Rodriguez recommended an edit to page 5, bullet 4 to read 146 units. 
 
Commissioner Ung recommended an edit to page 8, first paragraph under Parking, to 
read 292 spaces. 
 
In response to Commissioner Sanchez, Senior Planner Kroeger stated that the 
community and some Council members have asked for the hotel plans and it was at the 
discretion of the Planning Commission if the plans should be provided (as part of the 
package). 
 
Chair Rodriguez asked for comments from the applicant. 
 
Applicant Edward Czuker, President and CEO of Legado Companies (Legado), stated 
that staff spoke of opponents of the project but not of those in favor.  He stated that they 
had started with a proposal of 180 units and downscaled the project to 146 units as well 
as reduced the height from 56 feet to 33 feet and changing the design from 
Contemporary to Mediterranean. Applicant Czuker added that they had a positive 
experience working with the community and received good suggestions on public open 
space and providing a pet friendly environment. Applicant Czuker stated that they 
reduced retail and tried to make space available for pedestrians and bikers.  Applicant 
Czuker stated that they were proud of the project and that it would be an asset to the 
community and improve the vitality of the Riviera.  
 
Mr. Fernando Villa, on behalf of the applicant, came forward and clarified that the left-
hand turn lane and middle lane on Palos Verdes Boulevard were proposed design 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 5 
  

features that would enhance safety and were not mitigation measures because there 
were no significant impacts being mitigated. 
 
Chair Rodriguez called for those in the audience wishing to speak in favor of or against 
the proposed Legado project. 
 
Guy Brydon, 4015 Pacific Coast Highway, spoke against the project – stated that the 
proposal was an urban development and that Redondo Beach is a suburban city. Mr. 
Brydon asked that the community be kept suburban and that the property be developed 
appropriately.  
 
Jeff Abrams spoke against the project – stated that the project was too much 
development on a small parcel and asked for responsible development.   
 
Jane Abrams, 416 Avenue G, spoke against the project – commented on lost hotel jobs 
and an incomplete parking update. 
 
Nestor Moto, Jr., spoke in favor of the project – commented that the project could 
provide needed housing and added that it had been downgraded to address community 
needs. In response to Commissioner Sanchez, he estimated monthly rental cost for a 
one-bedroom, 700-900 sq. ft. unit at $1600-2000. 
 
Cavin Shorter, 203 Camino del Campo, spoke against the project – expressed his 
frustration with the condition of the fire-damaged (building) causing people vexation 
when driving past the site, and stated that Council should think about the moral compass 
in their decision on moving forward with the project. 
 
Alejandra Weyman spoke against the project – commented on concerns about the IS-
MND (traffic, air quality, noise), suggested that a full EIR should be prepared, and 
requested that the Planning Commission recommend denial of the project. 
 
Tatiana Osipova spoke against the project – requested City Council denial of the project. 
 
Bertin Guillory spoke against the project – stated that Legado was trying to “put a square 
in a circle” and that no approval should be given until hotel plans are known, and asked 
that the Commission recommend denial of the project. 
 
Jeff Mirosavich, 404 Avenue G, spoke against the project – stated that the project was 
not compatible with the neighborhood, and commented on density and water (supply).  
He urged that the proposal be rejected. 
 
Rolf Strutzenberg, 431 Avenue F, spoke against the project – stated that the project 
would not benefit the City, and commented on affordable housing, density, timeline for 
the hotel operation, and land use policy, and asked for denial of the project. 
 
Carol Perry, 413 Avenue G, spoke against the project – commented on housing 
affordability and the need for the applicant’s respect and acknowledgement of the 
community. She expressed appreciation to the Commission for listening to the 
community’s views. 
 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 6 
  

Radica Hent, spoke in favor of the 146-unit project – stated that she wanted to think of 
future generations and that she supported the project. 
 
Joe Oliveri, 1401 S. Pacific Coast Highway, spoke against the project - commented on 
Legado reducing number of units and suggested to Legado that the project be 
developed as a first-class, high-end gateway to the City. 
 
Bruce Szeles, 5326 Linda Dr., Torrance, spoke against the project – commented on 
trusting Legado with the development of a 4-star hotel, and asked for denial of the 
project. 
 
Goran Gudinovic spoke in favor of the project – stated that apartments were needed in 
the City, and recommended approval of the project. 
 
Eric Hooper, 30728 Ganado Dr., Palos Verdes, spoke in favor of the project – stated he 
“liked” expansion of PCH turn lanes. 
 
Daniel Caltricher, 30728 Ganado Dr., Palos Verdes, spoke in favor of the project – 
commented about moving to Redondo Beach. 
 
Bruce Caukin, 163, Via La Circula, spoke against the project – commented on Riviera 
residents being interconnected with this project, Caltrans projects/permits for PCH, 
reduction of units to 110-112, and the high price of the units. 
 
Patricia Williams, 412 Avenue G #11, spoke against the project – stated that the project 
was too large and would increase traffic, expressed concern for quality of life, and urged 
a “no” vote on the project. 
 
Hayden Martin spoke in favor of the project – stated that he enjoyed the community and 
would like to live in the project area.  
 
Jordan Almeida spoke in favor of the project – sated that Redondo Beach was a prime 
location to live in and urged for approval of the project. In response to Commissioner 
Sanchez, Mr. Almeida estimated monthly rents at $2500-3500. 
 
Cameron Wessel spoke in favor of the project – commented on Legado’s community 
outreach. 
 
Bryan Lew, Palos Verdes, spoke in favor of the project – stated that the project would 
benefit the City of Redondo Beach. 
 
Mark Rizk, South Bay resident, spoke in favor of the project – stated that there were not 
enough apartments in the City and that Legado would be a great addition to the City. 
 
Andy Shelby, 1800 S. Pacific Coast Highway, spoke against the project – stated that he 
would like a 2-story development, removal of the hotel from the proposal, and that 146 
units be developed “across the whole site.”  He asked that the project be rejected unless 
modified. 
 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 7 
  

Marilyn Brajevictt, 1314 S. Prospect Ave., spoke against the project – stated that major 
traffic would be created and suggested consideration of a smaller project. 
 
Joray Ess spoke in favor of the project – stated that the project would benefit the City 
and boost the local economy. 
 
Sean Ostiker spoke in favor of the project – stated that he was looking for the type of 
housing proposed by Legado and asked that the Commission support the project. 
 
Don Moore, Redondo Beach, spoke against the project – commented on the lack of 
hotel plans, and stated that he wanted good neighbors and a nice hotel, and not a 146-
unit project.  He asked for denial of the project. 
 
Julie Moore, Redondo Beach, spoke against the project – stated that she wanted 
responsible development, commented that the hotel was needed, and that she 
disagreed with the traffic study. She stated that in reviewing the recording of the last City 
Council meeting, 60% of the opponents were from Redondo Beach, the rest were from 
Torrance. She added that less than half of the proponents were from Redondo Beach 
and several were hotel employees of the Palos Verdes Inn.  Ms. Moore stated that the 
majority of the proponents were from other cities. She asked that the project be denied. 
 
Taime Riley, Avenue E, spoke against the project – commented on lack of hotel 
information, traffic conditions beyond PCH and Palos Verdes Blvd., and commercial 
vacancies.  She asked for denial of the project. 
 
Mary Trainor, 215 Paseo de Granada, spoke against the project – thanked the 
Commission and staff for their work on the project and for not “rubber stamping” the 
project.  She commented on the project’s traffic impact on PCH and Palos Verdes Blvd., 
and the threatened removal of the median.  Ms. Trainor stated that the removal of the 
median and widening of PCH would serve to speed traffic. She urged denial of the 
project. 
 
Hythum Kiswani spoke in favor – stated that the City needed housing in the area and 
asked for approval of the proposal as presented. 
 
Siegfried Calaquion, Palos Verdes resident, spoke in favor – stated that the project was 
ideal and asked for support of the project. 
 
Holly Osborne, north Redondo Beach, spoke against the project – commented that the 
removal of the medians would not make the area more walkable, and compared the site 
to 1800 PCH which has less retail and less units than Legado’s project; and the 3-story 
subterranean parking. 
  
Don Szerlip, Heritage Point, spoke in favor – commented on residential units, 
percentage of renters, the project’s appropriate location, and traffic mitigation which 
would improve the level of the intersection. Mr. Szerlip stated that the City had removed 
over a dozen trees from the Patterson school site and no objection was made, and the 
removal of the ficus tree would not affect the City. Mr. Szerlip added that he approved 
the development and that the hotel would generate revenue to the City.  Mr. Szerlip 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 8 
  

recommended approval of the project with the condition that the City Council require the 
hotel to have permitting at the same time or not give entitlements to the project.  
 
Emily Vollmer, new resident, spoke against the project – commented that the City was 
more affordable than Los Angeles, the Riviera was walkable, the hotel operation was a 
good idea, and stated that she opposed the project. 
 
Gloria Balcom, Riviera, spoke against the project – commented that the project was too 
dense and too tall and that it would increase traffic and water usage. She stated that the 
project would compromise the health and safety of the City’s residents and visitors.  Ms. 
Balcom added that the hotel plans were vague and that the property was in disrepair and 
that Legado should provide a specific plan for the hotel. She expressed opposition to the 
tree removal, and asked that the project be denied unless “meaningfully” modified. 
 
Michael Dube, 259 Paseo de Granada, spoke against the project – commented that the 
project was huge and asked that it be denied. 
 
Mara Kapano, Avenue H, spoke against the project – stated that the project this big did 
not fit the community’s direction and that she opposed the project.  
 
Susan Renick spoke against the project – commented on the “Next Door” blog where 
community information is shared; excessive traffic on Prospect Ave., and estimated 
1,750 additional cars at PCH and Palos Verdes Blvd.  Ms. Renick commented on the 
Planning Commission’s role to “protect the vitality of the community” and from 
overdevelopment. Ms. Renick urged the Commission to recommend denial of the 
proposal. 
 
Anthony White, Riviera resident, spoke in favor – commented on the legality of the 
project and that the City Attorney has said that 149 units were legal and viable. Mr. 
White urged a recommendation for City Council approval.  
 
John Erikson, 219 Avenue G, spoke in favor – commented on changes made by 
Legado, hotel revenues, and support of property owner rights.  Mr. Erikson stated he 
approved the proposed project. 
 
Michael Bahe, 456 Palos Verdes Blvd., spoke against the project – commented that this 
area represents a less dense and better lifestyle and that the project was too big. Mr. 
Bahe state that placing too many units on the site would be a disservice to the character 
of the community and that the project should not be approved. 
 
Tim Smith, employee of hotel representative, commented that former hotel employees 
were waiting for a decision, and stated that they need to be considered in the decision 
made.   
 
Robyn Crevalt, Avenue G, spoke against the project – commented on preserving the 
beach lifestyle. Ms. Crevalt stated that the proposed project was too big and that PCH 
was highly congested. She urged that the Planning Commission recommend to the City 
Council denial of the project. 
 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 9 
  

Floyd (Quarrels) commented on his lack of understanding of the project’s trip generation 
calculations.  
 
Marcie Guillermo, District 1, spoke against the project – commented on loss of hotel 
taxes, lack of property maintenance to the site, high density and lack of infrastructure, 
respect for property and community rights, and asked that the Commission listen to the 
community and make an informed decision that will benefit the City.  
 
Michelle Deland, spoke against the project – commented on parking conditions and 
stated that a high-rise building would be inappropriate for the City.  
 
Ann Cambar, Torrance, spoke against the project – asked that the Commission consider 
the speakers who represent community neighbors and families, and stated that her tally 
(on tonight’s speakers) was 33 against the project and 18 in favor. 
 
Nils Nehrenheim, District 1, spoke against the project – commented on traffic mitigation 
and unstudied intersections, density, housing, community character, and removal of the 
medians, which would create problems for pedestrians.  He stated that mitigation for 
Palos Verdes Boulevard needed to be discussed, and that the hotel project was 
incomplete. Mr. Nehrenheim added that a comprehensive application was needed to 
agree upon. 
 
The following individuals left speaker cards without addressing the Commission: 
 
Arinna Shelby, 1800 S. Pacific Coast Highway, Redondo Beach:  Against the project 
Ellen Geobert, 3001 Blaisdell Ave., Redondo Beach:  Against the project 
Suzanne McCune, 1224 S. Gertruda, Redondo Beach: Against the project 
Sheila Garcia, no further information 
Renee Ohta, no further information 
 
Michael Shean, Attorney for Legado, commented that the proposed project was below 
the zoning for the subject parcel and was identified in its 180-unit version in the Housing 
Element. He stated that the City Council and Planning Commission agreed that the 
project was zoned for this parcel, as designated in the General Plan. Mr. Shean added 
that the project was smaller scaled than the project(s) envisioned by the Council and 
Planning Commission for the subject site.   
 
Ed Czuker, Legado, commented on the misinformation regarding the pedestrian median, 
which would be a “refuge” if pedestrian laws are broken by jaywalking on PCH. He 
stated that the removal of the tree and median were Caltrans’ requirements to improve 
traffic flow and pattern, and not part of Legado’s plan. He added that they did not have 
issue with the City wanting to keep or not keep the tree and median, and they did not 
want that decision to affect the project’s traffic impact and change the CEQA documents. 
Applicant Czuker commented on the structure configuration of the 1- 2- and 3-story 
structures, reduced from the 3- and 4-story original proposal, and stated that project’s 
“urbanization” was an overstatement. He commented that (as “big” taxpayers) they have 
a vested interest in the City and wanted to see a large revenue-generating hotel be 
developed. Applicant Czuker stated that suggested Caltrans and traffic engineer 
improvements to traffic flow would enhance the City’s lifestyle and quality of life, and 
added that the traffic flow would be improved by 10-15 percent. He commented on 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 10 
  

proposed sewer and water off-site improvements and stated that the project was 
environmentally-, pedestrian-, and bike-friendly.  Applicant Czuker stated that they were 
proud of the proposed project and asked for its approval. 
 
In response to Commissioner Biro regarding timing on hotel improvements, occupancy 
and building permits, Applicant Czuker commented on discussions regarding a condition 
or requirement to come back to the Planning Commission to get approval of the hotel 
design and implementation prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy.  
Applicant Czuker stated that the hotel design needed to be coordinated and integrated 
with the apartment design. He added that they were in discussion with the hotel 
operators regarding design recommendations, as well as staff regarding 
recommendations for a high-end, 4-star hotel and the elements being artistically 
implemented. Applicant Czuker commented that the hotel and apartments needed to be 
financed as two separate projects due to separate property legal descriptions and air 
space subdivision requirements. Applicant Czuker referenced the Supplement 
Information handout with pictures of exterior and interior improvements to a high-end 
quality project. Applicant Czuker added that they could not finish the hotel design until 
the design of the apartment building(s) was completed. 
 
In response to Commissioner Biro, Applicant Czuker stated that they would not be able 
to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for the apartments until the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit for the hotel, and estimated the start of construction for the 
apartments was 6-12 months. He further responded that they were periodically 
addressing landscaping and tree trimming maintenance to the hotel site and could 
include painting the building as suggested by Commissioner Biro. Applicant Czuker 
stated that they were still meeting with insurance adjusters and attorneys regarding the 
insurance settlement and hoped that a settlement would be made as soon as possible.  
 
In response to Chair Rodriguez, Applicant Czuker stated that they would be working on 
the hotel plans during construction of the apartments. He stated that they were 
interested in working on the hotel plans concurrently with the start of the apartment 
construction and that their attempt would be to promptly present (the hotel plans) to the 
Commission for approval.   
 
In response to Commissioner Sanchez, Applicant Czuker stated that they were moving 
forward by working on budgets, design, and themes, and responded that 10 years ago 
their plan for the site was the hotel and retail use. He commented on the impacts of the 
economic recession of 2008-09 and (at the time) looking at how to revitalize the site, 
considering multiple options with the hotel being part of the concept. He added that they 
have worked with consultants to develop a hotel theme and stated that they analyzed 
the development potential for the site. He responded to Commissioner Sanchez’s 
question on what their plan for the site was by stating that the property was purchased 
as an investment property to maximize the site’s revenue. 
 
In response to Commissioner Ung regarding lack of hotel plans, Applicant Czuker stated 
that they could not provide a hotel design until the apartments/retail design that would 
complement the hotel use was completed. He commented on the design layout with 
purpose or function and that theme and features need to be thought through. He added 
that they were working with design experts for the hotel and commented regarding the 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 11 
  

balconies/exterior look/elevations/lobby spaces.  He stated that the hotel (design) had to 
be correlated with the apartment design.  
 
Moved by Commissioner Sanchez, seconded by Commissioner Biro, to close public 
participation of the Public Hearing.  
 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Biro, Sanchez, Ung, Chair Rodriguez    
NAYS:    None     ABSTAINED:   None    
ABSENT:  Vice Chair Goodman, Commissioner Gaian       
  Commissioner Mitchell (recused)       
 
In response to Commissioner Biro, Senior Planner Kroeger stated that the required 
mitigated measures for the 146-unit project in the IS-MND, as prepared by the City’s 
environmental consultants, were adequate. She added that the consultants had found no 
reason to redo the entire environmental documents. She added that there were no 
significant impacts that were unmitigated, therefore an EIR was not required. She further 
stated that the mitigation measures in the IS-MND based on the traffic consultant and 
traffic engineer would improve level of service at that intersection. 
 
In response to Chair Rodriguez, Senior Planner Kroeger stated that commercial uses 
generated more traffic than residential uses and the 68 percent decrease in generated 
traffic was due to the proposed project’s decrease in commercial square footage. 
 
Community Development Director Jones added that the reduced commercial component 
was what makes the difference in traffic trip generation (outlined in the consultant’s letter 
included in staff’s report). 
 
In response to Commissioner Sanchez, Senior Planner Kroeger clarified that the F.A.R. 
for residential/mixed use/commercial was determined by the entire property. She stated 
that mixed uses have a higher F.A.R. because the General Plan encouraged mixed use 
projects and were based on the entire site, and added that the Vesting Tentative Parcel 
Map was required because it separated the pad from the hotel to provide for financing. 
 
In response to Commissioner Biro, Senior Planner Kroeger stated if the hotel project did 
not go forward, the applicant would have to start with a new project and that a 
condominium project would need to meet the allowed residential density.  
 
Community Development Director Jones added that the City has not received any 
condominium development applications since 1988. Mr. Jones further added that 
commercial use could be added to the site, and that staff could recommend approval of 
plans for hotel renovation prior to apartment Certificate of Occupancy, and could also tie 
the issuance of the Conditional Use Permit to the Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
In response to Chair Rodriguez, Community Development Director Jones stated that 
since 1990, traffic on PCH and Palos Verdes Boulevard intersection has decreased,  
City population has increased by 0.5% annually, and that there was adequate water 
supply to support the project.  
 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 12 
  

Senior Planner Kroeger added that utility providers have provided letters of support, and 
that the units were “greener” with less utility and water usage. 
 
Community Development Director Jones stated that, for Planning purposes, the City has 
used 120 units net gain per year. 
 
In response to Chair Rodriguez, Community Development Director Jones stated that the 
proposed project averaged 33 feet in height for the predominant portions, with portions 
at 45 feet. 
 
Senior Planner Kroeger added that condominium projects on Avenue G were similar in 
height and some were more dense than the proposed mixed use project. 
 
Community Development Director Jones stated that older buildings on Avenue G had a 
higher density than the proposed project. Mr. Jones added that newer buildings to the 
east of the site had lower densities. 
 
In response to Chair Rodriguez, Community Development Director Jones stated that the 
subject site was in a location where the water table is “quite far down,” and perhaps the 
biggest engineering constraint was the retaining wall at the rear of the property, however 
was feasible because of the setback required for the access road to the rear. He clarified 
the relationship between the highest point of the project compared to the condos behind 
the site.  
 
Senior Planner Kroeger clarified the height of the buildings and added that some units 
would have views blocked and that units close to Palos Verdes Boulevard would 
maintain their views. 
 
Community Development Director Jones stated that staff suggested that Planning 
Commission recommend requiring approval of the plans for the hotel renovation and 
completion of the renovation prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy. He added 
that the Commission consider that direction be given to the applicant regarding keeping 
the property clean, safe, and attractive 
 
In response to Commissioner Ung, Community Development Director Jones stated that 
citizen concerns could be reported to the hotel’s management, and to the Police 
Department during after-hours.  
 
Moved by Commissioner Biro to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
proposed 146-unit Legado project, with an additional requirement that the hotel 
improvements be completed prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy.  
Commissioner Biro further suggested Conditional Use Permit approval prior to (issuance 
of) a demolition permit of the site and that the site be maintained and lit during additional 
time of processing of the project. 

  
Commissioner Sanchez stated that he agreed with Commissioner Biro regarding the 
Certificate of Occupancy and permitting requirements, and amended the motion by 
adding a recommendation to further amend the project to reduce the number of units 
from 146 to 128.  
 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 13 
  

Chair Rodriguez acknowledged and thanked the applicant for reducing traffic by 
decreasing the retail use.  
 
Commissioner Biro concurred to the amendment of the motion. 
 
Motion seconded by Commissioner Ung. 
 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Biro, Sanchez, Ung, Chair Rodriguez    
NAYS:    None     ABSTAINED:   None    
ABSENT:  Vice Chair Goodman, Commissioner Gaian      
  Commissioner Mitchell (recused)       
 
Senior Planner Kroeger announced that the Planning Commission recommendation 
would be reported to the City Council at a continuation of the appeal hearing in a Special 
Meeting scheduled for June 14, 2016. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell returned to the dais at 10:18 p.m. 
 
OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 
NEW BUSINESS - NONE  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
Marci Guillermo commented on zoning changes and urged a “no” vote on Measure K in 
the upcoming election. 
 
COMMISSION ITEMS AND REFERRALS TO STAFF 
Chair Rodriguez reminded everyone to vote on June 7, 2016. 
 
ITEMS FROM STAFF 
Community Development Director Jones announced that a public hearing on the 
Waterfront project before the Harbor Commission would be held on June 13, 2016 at 
6:30 p.m. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION ON PLANNING COMMISSION MATTERS 
Community Development Director Jones reported that on May 17, 2016, the City Council 
approved the Request for Proposals (RFP) for a General Plan Update 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  10:23 PM 
Moved by Commissioner Mitchell, seconded by Sanchez, to adjourn the meeting at 
10:23 p.m. to a regular meeting to be held at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 16, 2016, in 
the Redondo Beach City Council Chambers, 415 Diamond Street, Redondo Beach, 
California.  
 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
 
 



 
MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
May 19, 2016 
PAGE 14 
  

AYES:  Commissioners Biro, Mitchell, Sanchez, Ung, Chair Rodriguez   
NAYS:    None    ABSTAINED:  None    
ABSENT:  Vice Chair Goodman, Commissioner Gaian      
 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      ____________  __________ 
      Aaron Jones 

Community Development Director 



 
 
 
 
                Council Action Date:  May 17, 2016 
 
 
To: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
From: JOE HOEFGEN, CITY MANAGER 
 
Subject: STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE ON SIX-MONTH OBJECTIVES 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Receive and file the monthly updates to the six-month strategic objectives adopted by 
the City Council on April 19, 2016.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On March 29, 2016, the City Council held a Strategic Planning Workshop to establish 
10 year goals, 3 year goals and six-month objectives.  The objectives set were adopted 
by the City Council at the April 19, 2016 Council Meeting.  Monthly updates are 
provided to the Mayor and Council to enable them to monitor the City’s progress. This 
current update is the first of the March 29, 2016 Strategic Planning session’s six-month 
objectives.  The next Strategic Planning Retreat will be held on September 14, 2016. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City Council’s Strategic Plan directs the development of the City budget, program 
objectives, and performance measures.  The goals provide the basis for improving 
services, and preserving a high quality of life in the City. 
 
The City began strategic planning in 1998 with the creation of the first three-year 
strategic plan covering the period of 1998-2001.  In October 2001, a second three-year 
plan was developed for 2001-2004.  At the February 25, 2003 retreat, these Core 
Values were added: Openness and Honesty, Integrity and Ethics, Accountability, 
Outstanding Customer Service, Teamwork, Excellence, Environmental Responsibility, 
and Fiscal Responsibility.  A third three-year plan was developed in March 2004, 
covering the period of 2004-2007, and included a vision statement.  In September 2007, 
the fourth three-year plan was developed with new goals and objectives.  A fifth three-
year plan was developed on March 3, 2010.  The sixth three-year strategic plan goals 
were developed on September 12, 2013.  Finally, the seventh three-year strategic plan 
goals were developed on the March 29, 2016.  The following are the five strategic plan 
goals for 2016-2019.  They are not in priority order: 

Administrative Report 



Administrative Report                   May 17, 2016 
Strategic Plan Update  
Page 2 
 

 

 
• Modernize City communications systems 
• Vitalize the Waterfront, Artesia Corridor, Riviera Village and South Bay 

Galleria 
• Ensure sustainability, livability, and health by completing the General Plan 

update and by implementing environmentally responsible programs 
• Assess, prioritize, and plan for park/open space acquisition and for 

reconstruction of major City facilities and infrastructure  
• Maintain a high level of public safety with public engagement 

 
At the March 29, 2016 Strategic Planning, ten-year goals were also developed.  The 
following are the six strategic plan goals for 2016-2026.  They are not in priority order: 
 

• Be the premier waterfront location on the West Coast 
• Secure funding for new safety facilities and City Hall 
• Create the most innovative law enforcement agency in America 
• Secure a voter-approved plan for a de-industrialized AES site 
• Revitalize the South Bay Galleria  
• Increase and enhance parks and public open space 

 
The City Manager provides monthly updates to the adopted six-month objectives to 
enable the Mayor and City Council to monitor the City’s progress on the Strategic Plan. 
 
COORDINATION 
 
All departments participated in the development of the Strategic Plan and in providing 
the attached update.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total cost for this activity is included in the Mayor and City Council’s portion of the 
FY 2015-2016 Adopted Annual Budget. 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
Joe Hoefgen, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: 

• Strategic Plan Update - Six-Month Objectives dated May 17, 2016 



 A 

C I T Y  O F  R E D O N D O  B E A C H        S I X - M O N T H  S T R A T E G I C  O B J E C T I V E S  
M a r c h  2 9 ,  2 0 1 6  –  S e p t e m b e r  1 5 ,  2 0 1 6  

 
 
 

ACM=Assistant City Mgr      CD=Community Development       PW=Public Works        WED=Waterfront and Economic Development       CS=Community Services 
 
 

 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Modernize City communication systems  
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
At the August 16, 
2016 council 
Meeting 

 
IT Director, working with 
All Departments 

 
Identify options to make the phone system easier for the public to use and present to the City 
Council for information and possible action. 
 

  
X 

 
 

 
 

2. 
At the June 7, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
IT Director, working with 
Police Chief, Fire Chief, 
RBUSD and City 
Manager 

 
Identify the cost and feasibility of establishing a reverse 911 notification system and report the 
results, with recommendations, to the City Council for action. 
 

  
X 

 
 

 
 

3. 
By September 15, 
2016 

 
CS Director, working 
with IT Director, City 
Attorney and City 
Manager 

 
Present to the City Council for review a status report on the implementation of a social media policy 
and pilot program. 
 

  
 

 
 

Social Media Pilot 
Program on hold pending 
approval of Social Media 
Policy by City Attorney. 
 

4. 
By April 29, 2016 

 
CS Director 

 
Create a City Staff Directory and distribute to all City Departments and the City Council. 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5. 
At the May 3, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 
 

 
IT Director 

 
Present to the City Council for action a contract for a website upgrade. 

  
 

 
X 

Revised to May 17, 2016 
Council Meeting 
 

 



 B 

 
 
 

 
THREE-YEAR GOAL: Vitalize the Waterfront, Artesia Corridor, Riviera Village and South Bay Galleria 

 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVIS
ED  

1. 
At the September 
20, 2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
PW Director, working 
with CD Director 

 
Report on the outdoor Dining Deck Pilot Program and present options to the City Council for 
action regarding possible program extension. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

2. 
At the June 7, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
CD Director 

 
Report to the City Council the results of Code Enforcement’s review of temporary signs on Artesia 
Boulevard. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

3. 
By June, 22, 2016 

 
CD Director 

 
Release the draft EIR on South Bay Galleria for public review and comment. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

4. 
By September 15, 
2016 

 
PW Director, working 
with CD Director 
 

 
Evaluate the feasibility of converting Catalina Avenue, between Avenue I and Elena, to a one-way 
street. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

5. 
By August 1, 2016 

 
WED Director, working 
with ACM 

 
Present a report with recommendations to the City Council for action on the results of the public 
outreach meetings regarding a new boat ramp. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

6. 
At the September 
6, 2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
WED and PW Director, 
working with regional 
agencies 

 
Report on the status of the analysis of sea level rise and its potential impact on the Redondo 
Beach waterfront. 
 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

7. 
By June 15, 2016 

 
City Manager with the 
CD Director and City 
Attorney 

 
City and AES representatives to meet and confer as necessary and discuss implementation of the 
AES Task Force, its purpose, organization and membership, and other details relevant to the 
formation of the AES Task Force prior to a City Council Report on July 5, 2016 for appointment of 
the AES Task Force (unless extended by both parties). 
 

  
X 

  

8. 
At the July 19, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
City Manager with City 
Attorney and CD Director 
 

 
City Council to select consulting services firms needed to support the AES Task Force following 
the RFP Process used for the General Plan update. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

9. 
DATE TO BE 
DETERMINED 

 
AES Task Force, working 
with Consultants 

 
Present findings regarding options for using AES property. 
 
 

    



 C 

10. 
FUTURE 
OBJECTIVE 

 
WED Director, working 
with Fire Chief 
 

 
Develop a Transient Vessel Mooring Marketing Plan and recommend boater amenities to 
promote the harbor as a destination. 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

11. 
FUTURE 
OBJECTIVE 

 
CD Director, working with  
WED Director 
 

 
Present to the City Council for action an ordinance to modify parking requirements citywide to 
help encourage economic development. 

 
 

  
 

 
 

11. 
FUTURE 
OBJECTIVE 

 
WED, working with CD 
Director 

 
Explore the feasibility and recommend to the City Council whether or not to create a Storefront 
Improvement Program in key business areas. 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 



 D 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Ensure sustainability, livability, and health by completing the General Plan update and by 
implementing environmentally responsible programs 

 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
At the May 17, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
CD Director 

 
Prepare a request for proposal (RFP) for contract services for the General Plan update 
and present to the City Council for consideration and release. 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

RFP presented to Council 
for action on May 17, 2016 

2. 
At the July 19, 2016 
Council Meeting 

 
CD Director, working 
with City Manager 
and City Attorney 

 
Recommend to the City Council for action the selection of a General Plan Update 
consultant. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 

3. 
At the August 16, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
CD Director, working 
with City Manager 
and City Attorney 
 

 
Present to the City Council for consideration the formation and composition of a citizens’ 
General Plan Advisory Committee, including potential inclusion of representatives from 
Neighborhood Councils. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 

4. 
At the July 19, 2016 
Council Meeting 

 
PW Director, working 
with CD Director, 
City Manager and 
City Attorney 

 
Present to the City Council for consideration a report on whether to prohibit single use 
plastic bags from being distributed in Redondo Beach. 

  
X 

  

5. 
By August 16, 2016 

 
City Attorney, 
working with CS 
Director 

 
Present to the City Council for direction options for restructuring the Redondo Beach Sister 
City Committee as a separate non-profit 501 c3 and/or an official City committee or 
commission. 

  
X 

  

 
 



 E 

 
 
 

 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Assess, prioritize, and plan for park/open space acquisition, and for reconstruction of 
major City facilities and infrastructure 

 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
At the 
September 6, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
ACM, working with 
PW Director, , Police 
Chief, Fire Chief and 
FS Director 

 
Assess the need for and develop preliminary cost estimates for reconstruction of public safety 
facilities (police station, fire stations and shooting range) and report the results to the City Council. 
 

 
 

 
X 

  

2. 
At the 
September 6, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
ACM, working with 
PW Director and FS 
Director 

 
Assess the need for and develop preliminary cost estimates for City Hall reconstruction. 
 

 
 

 
X 

  

3. 
By June 21, 
2016  

 
PW Director 

 
Prepare a Budget Response Report assessing the need for and develop preliminary cost estimates 
for reconstruction of roadway infrastructure citywide. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
X 

BRR to be presented on 
May 17, 2016 

4. 
By June 21, 
2016  

 
WED Director, 
working with PW 
Director 

 
Present to the City Council for consideration a plan for maintenance and repair of the Pier Parking 
Structure. 
 

 
 

 
X 

  

5. 
At the August, 
16, 2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
PW Director, working 
with Fire Chief 

 
Determine the feasibility, right of way impacts, and costs of converting 4-way stop sign intersections 
to roundabouts through a resident petition program. 
 

 
 

 
X 

  

6. 
At the May 17, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
CS Director, working 
with PW Director and 
ACM 

 
Present to the City Council for consideration options and cost estimates for adding lights at the 
playing field(s) at Dominguez Park 

  
X 

  

7. 
At the May 17, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
CS Director, working 
with PW Director and 
ACM 

 
Present to the City Council options and cost estimates for adding dug outs and/or backstops at Fulton 
Field and Julia Field. 

  
X 

  

8. 
FUTURE  
OBJECTIVE 

 
PW Director, working 
with Fire Chief and 
WED Director 

 
Evaluate the feasibility of docking Tall Ships at a City Pier and make a recommendation to the City 
Council for action. 
 

 
 

   

 
 



 F 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Maintain a high level of public safety with public engagement 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
By September 
15, 2016  

 
Police Chief, working 
with ACM and City 
Manager 

 
Continue to work towards implementation of recommendations from the Assessment of the Redondo 
Beach Police Department.  

 
 

 
X 

  

2. 
At the August 2, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
Police Chief, working 
with City Attorney 
and City Manager 

 
Research and prepare an ordinance for City Council consideration for the potential regulation of aerial 
drones in Redondo Beach.  

 
 

 
X 

  

3. 
By August 1, 
2016 

 
CD Director, working 
with City Attorney, 
HR Director and City 
Manager 

 
Implement measures to enable City code enforcement officers to issue citations for violations of the 
Municipal Code.  

 
 

 
X 

  

4. 
At the May 3, 
2016 Council 
Meeting 

 
Fire Chief, working 
with the City Attorney 
and City Manager 

 
Complete analysis and present to the City Council a recommendation on whether to submit a 
proposal to Los Angeles County for the Redondo Beach Fire Department to provide 911 ambulance 
transport service for all emergency calls originating in Redondo Beach   
 

 
 

  
X 

Presentation 
rescheduled to June 07, 
2016 Council Meeting 

 



























































































































































































































































































  

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
600 N PACIFIC COAST HWY 
PAGE NO. 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  2016-06-PCR-*** 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF REDONDO BEACH APPROVING AN EXEMPTION 

DECLARATION AND GRANTING THE REQUEST FOR A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE OPERATION OF AN 

AUTOMOBILE SALES LOT ON PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN A 

COMMERCIAL (C-2B) ZONE AT 600 N. PACIFIC COAST HIGHWAY 

(CASE NO. 2016-06-PC-014) 
 

WHEREAS, an application was filed on behalf of the owner of the property 
located at 600 N. Pacific Coast Highway for approval of an Exemption Declaration and 
consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation of an automobile sales 
lot on property located within a Commercial (C-2B) zone; and 

 
WHEREAS, notice of the time and place of the public hearing where the 

Exemption Declaration and application would be considered was given pursuant to 
State law and local ordinances by publication in the Easy Reader, by posting the 
subject property, and by mailing notices to property owners within 300 feet of the 
exterior boundaries of the subject property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Redondo Beach has 
considered evidence presented by the applicant, the Planning Division, and other 
interested parties at the public hearing held on the 16th day of June, 2016, with respect 
thereto. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
REDONDO BEACH DOES HEREBY FIND: 

 
1. In accordance with Section 10-2.2506(b) of the Redondo Beach Municipal Code, 

a Conditional Use Permit is in accord with the criteria set forth therein for the 
following reasons: 

 
a) The proposed vehicle sales business is conditionally permitted in the land 

use and zoning district in which the site is located, and the site is 
adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use, and the project is 
consistent with the requirements of Chapter 2, Title 10 of the Redondo 
Beach Municipal Code, to adjust the use with the land and uses in the 
neighborhood. 

 
b) The site has access to public streets of adequate width to carry the kind 

and quantity of traffic generated by the proposed vehicle sales business 
subject to the requirement that all test driving activity be conducted on 
Pacific Coast Highway and other major arterial streets only and subject to 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
600 N PACIFIC COAST HWY 
PAGE NO. 2 

the requirement that the applicant shall irrevocably dedicate 10’ of 
property across the PCH frontage for future street ROW purposes. 

 

c) The proposed vehicle sales use shall have no adverse effect on abutting 
property or the permitted use thereof, subject to the conditions of 
approval. Conditions including but not limited to: the hours of operation; 
limited inventory on-site; lighting height limits and shielding, substantial 
landscaping, new 6’ wall between subject property and adjacent legal 
nonconforming residential use, on-site parking in excess of zoning 
ordinance requirements, no loudspeaker or audio paging systems, 
prohibiting banners and pennants without special permit, test drives on 
Pacific Coast Highway and other Major Arterials only, limiting car washing 
and detailing activities, and improvements to adjacent sidewalks. 

 

d) The proposed vehicle sales business conforms to all of the requirements 
of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

e) The proposed vehicle sales business is consistent with the 
Comprehensive General Plan of the City. 

 

2. The plans, specifications and drawings submitted with the applications have 
been reviewed by the Planning Commission, and are approved. 

 

3. The project is Categorically Exempt from the preparation of environmental 
documents pursuant to Section 15303 (New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures) of the Guidelines of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 

4. The Planning Commission hereby finds that the proposed project will have no 
impact on fish and game resources pursuant to Section 21089(b) of the Public 
Resources Code. 

 

5. The Planning Commission further finds that in reviewing the Exemption 
Declaration it has exercised its own independent judgment. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
REDONDO BEACH DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That based on the above findings, the Planning Commission does hereby 
approve the Exemption Declaration and grant the Conditional Use Permit pursuant to 
the plans and applications considered by the Planning Commission at its meeting of the 
16th day of June, 2016. 
 
Section 2.  This permit shall be void in the event that the applicant does not comply with 
the following conditions: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
600 N PACIFIC COAST HWY 
PAGE NO. 3 

 
1. That the approval granted herein is for the operation of a Vehicle Sales business 

on the property at 600 N. Pacific Coast Highway and the subject property shall 
be improved, developed, constructed and operated in substantial compliance 
with the plans reviewed in conjunction with the applications approved by the 
Planning Commission on June 16, 2016. 

2. Any modification to the approved plans requires the approval of the Department 
of Community Development. Significant changes to the plans or vehicle sales 
operations as determined by the Director of the Community Development 
Department may require review by the Planning Commission. 

3. That the hours of operation for the vehicle sales on the subject property will be 
as follows: Monday – Friday 10:00 AM – 7:00 PM; Saturday 10:00 AM – 5:00 
PM; and Sunday 12:00 PM – 5:00 PM. 

4. Vehicle deliveries to the business are limited to weekdays only between the 
hours of 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Vehicles can only be offloaded from the north 
side of Agate street west of the access driveway to the property. 

5. That a minimum of three (3) striped parking spaces (dimensioned per zoning 
ordinance regulations), one (1) for employee and two (2) are required on the 
subject property. 

6. All test drives associated with the operation of the vehicles sales business are 
limited to routes along Pacific Coast Highway and other roadways within the City 
designated as Major Arterials, i.e. Anita/190th Street, Aviation Boulevard, Artesia 
Boulevard, etc.  

7. An irrevocable offer for dedication of 10’ for the 20.99’ of frontage along Pacific 
Coast Highway (100’ Right of Way, 50’ from center line) is required to be 
submitted for review and approval to the City by the applicant and then recorded 
against the subject property and a certified copy of the recorded irrevocable offer 
of dedication shall be provided to the City by the applicant prior to the certificate 
of occupancy for the on-site office.  

8. An additional 5’ wide landscaping area for the 20.99’ of frontage along Pacific 
Coast Highway is required in the event the City improves Pacific Coast Highway 
to its full width right-of-way. 

9. An additional 2’ wide landscaping area along the 226.69’ of frontage along Agate 
Street may be required in the event additional street improvements are made by 
the City of Agate Street adjacent to the subject property. A minimum 5’ wide 
landscaping area is required along the entire Agate Street frontage which can be 
accommodated by a combination of private and adjacent public property.  



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
600 N PACIFIC COAST HWY 
PAGE NO. 4 

10. Any landscaping provided within adjacent public right-of-way must be reviewed 
and approved by the City’s Public Works Department.  

11. Light standards are required to comply with the approved Planning Commission 
plans and cannot exceed a maximum height of 12’. All on-site lighting must be 
directed on-site and shielded to prevent light and direct glare upon adjacent 
properties. A maximum of five (5) light standards are permitted. 

12. A new smooth finish stucco block wall 6’ in height is required to be installed on or 
near the property line between this property and the adjacent property to the 
north developed with legal nonconforming residential use subject to the approval 
by the Community Development Director. 

13. On-site and off-site landscaping is required and must substantially conform to 
the landscaping plans approved by the Planning Commission on June 16, 2016.  

14. No signs or banners are permitted without approval by the Community 
Development Department and the issuance of any required permits. Only two (2) 
walls signs, compliant with applicable zoning ordinance signage requirements, 
one (1) to be located on the south elevation and the other on the west elevation 
of the proposed building will be permitted. 

15. No outdoor speakers or outdoor amplified sound is permitted with this business. 
All noise requirements must be met for this location.  

16. The washing and detailing of vehicles on-site is limited to a system subject to the 
approval by the Community Development Director and cannot include equipment 
that exceeds required noise limits at the property line. No vehicle washing of 
vehicles is permitted after 5:00 PM Monday-Saturday and is not permitted on 
Sundays. Any washing system must be minimal in terms of water usage and 
must drain to the landscaping area with the design infiltration area along Pacific 
Coast Highway.  

17. That the project shall comply with all applicable codes, local ordinances, 
regulations and requirements and obtain all necessary permits from the 
Community Development Department, Public Works Department and the Fire 
Department. 

18. That the project shall adhere to all adopted state codes and local ordinances in 
regards to accessibility requirements.   

19. In the event of a disagreement in the interpretation and/or application of these 
conditions, the issue shall be referred back to the Planning Commission for a 
decision.  The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
600 N PACIFIC COAST HWY 
PAGE NO. 5 

20. All employee vehicles and vehicles subject to sale are not permitted to be parked 
on public streets. All vehicle parking associated with the subject business, 
employee or vehicle inventory must be kept on the subject property.  

21. Accessible off-street parking, including signage and markings, should be 
installed consistent with the requirements of Caltrans Standard Plan A90A 
(traffic). 

22. The driveway approach must designed and constructed per APWA Standard 
Plans (traffic). 

23. That curb ramps at two street corners adjacent to the property shall be 
constructed. Land for curb ramp us shall be dedicated to the City via easement 
deed. Contact the Public Works Department for additional information (public 
works). 

24. Landscaping in the Public Right of Way shall be reviewed and approved by the 
PW Parks Manager (public works). 

25. Provide sidewalk compliant with ADA and APWA Standards (public works). 

26. Comply with all adopted state codes (2013 California Codes) and local 
ordinances (building division). 

27. Submit survey, soil report, architectural and structural plans, EMP plans, grading 
and drainage plans at time of plan check submittal (building division). 

28. Comply with all Title 24 accessibility requirements. 

29. Provide property Building Information at time of building permit plan check 
submittal: Occupancy, Type of Construction, Fire Sprinklers, Exiting Analysis, 
etc. (building division). 

 
Section 3.  That the approved Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void if not 
vested within 36 months after the Planning Commission’s approval. 
 
Section 4.  That, prior to seeking judicial review of this resolution, the applicant is 
required to appeal to the City Council.  The applicant has ten days from the date of 
adoption of this resolution in which to file the appeal. 
 
FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission forward a copy of this resolution 
to the City Council so the Council will be informed of the action of the Planning 
Commission. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
600 N PACIFIC COAST HWY 
PAGE NO. 6 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 16th day of June, 2016. 
 
 

   ________________________ 
       Doug Rodriquez, Chair 
       Planning Commission 
       City of Redondo Beach 
 
ATTEST: 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA          ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES   )      SS 
CITY OF REDONDO BEACH   ) 
 
I, Aaron Jones, Community Development Director of the City of Redondo Beach, 
California, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-06-PCR-*** was 
duly passed, approved and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of 
Redondo Beach, California, at a regular meeting of said Planning Commission held on 
the 16th day of June, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:         
 
NOES:         
 
ABSENT:    
  

ABSTAIN: 
 

 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Aaron Jones 
Community Development Director 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Attorney’s Office 





































































  

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  2016-06-PCR-*** 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF REDONDO BEACH APPROVING AN EXEMPTION 

DECLARATION AND GRANTING THE REQUEST FOR A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLANNING COMMISSION DESIGN 

REVIEW, COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND VESTING 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 74219 TO ALLOW THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF A MIXED-USE PROJECT CONSISTING OF 12 

RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT UNITS AND COMMERCIAL 

DEVELOPMENT ON PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN A MIXED-USE 

(MU-3C) ZONE AT 219 AVENUE I IN THE COASTAL ZONE (CASE 

NO. 2016-06-PC-015) 
 

WHEREAS, an application was filed on behalf of the owner of the property 
located at 219 Avenue I for approval of an Exemption Declaration and consideration of 
a Conditional Use Permit, Planning Commission Design Review, Coastal Development 
Permit, and Vesting Tentative Parcel Map No. 74219 to allow the construction of a 
mixed-use project consisting of 12 residential apartment units and commercial 
development on property located within a Mixed-Use (MU-3C) zone, in the Coastal 
Zone; and 

 
WHEREAS, notice of the time and place of the public hearing where the 

Exemption Declaration and applications would be considered was given pursuant to 
State law and local ordinances by publication in the Easy Reader, by posting the 
subject property, and by mailing notices to property owners within 300 feet and 
occupants within 100 feet of the exterior boundaries of the subject property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Redondo Beach has 
considered evidence presented by the applicant, the Planning Division, and other 
interested parties at the public hearing held on the 16th day of June, 2016, with respect 
thereto. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
REDONDO BEACH DOES HEREBY FIND: 

 
1. In accordance with Section 10-5.2506(b) of the Redondo Beach Municipal 

Code, a Conditional Use Permit is in accord with the criteria set forth therein for 
the following reasons: 

 
a) The proposed use is permitted in the land use district in which the site is 

located, and the site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the 
use and all yards, open spaces, walls, and fences, parking, landscaping 
and other features, and the project is consistent with the requirements of 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 2 

Chapter 5, Title 10 of the Redondo Beach Municipal Code, to adjust the 
use with the land and uses in the neighborhood. 

 
b) The site has adequate access to public streets of adequate width to carry 

the kind and quantity of traffic generated by the proposed use provided 
that the project includes a street dedication and improvements for safe 
access to Pacific Coast Highway. 
 

c) The proposed use shall have no adverse effect on abutting property or the 
permitted use thereof, subject to the conditions of approval with the 
exception of the eastern residential structure requires modifications. 
 

d) The proposed project conforms to all of the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

e) The project is consistent with the Comprehensive General Plan of the City. 
 
2. In accordance with Section 10-5.2502(b) of the Redondo Beach Municipal 

Code, the applicant’s request for Planning Commission Design Review is 
consistent with the criteria set forth therein for the following reasons: 

 
a) The design of the project considers the impact and needs of the user in 

respect to circulation, parking, traffic, utilities, public services, noise and 
odor, privacy, private and common open spaces, trash collection, security 
and crime deterrence, energy consumption, physical barriers, and other 
design concerns. 
 

b) The location of the structure respects the natural terrain of the site and is 
functionally integrated with natural features of the landscape to include the 
preservation of existing trees, where feasible.   

 
c) The design of the project is harmonious and consistent within the 

proposed architectural style regarding roofing, materials, windows, doors, 
openings, textures, colors, and exterior treatment. 
 

d) The design of the project is integrated and compatible with the 
neighborhood and is in harmony with the scale and bulk of the surrounding 
properties. 
 

e) The design of the project provides innovation, variety, and creativity in the 
proposed design solution and serves to minimize the appearance of flat 
facades and box-like construction. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 3 

3. In accordance with Section 10-5.2218 of the Redondo Beach Municipal Code, 
the applicant’s request for a Coastal Development Permit is consistent with the 
findings set forth therein for the following reasons: 

 
a) The proposed development is in conformity with the Certified Local 

Coastal Program because it is consistent with the Mixed-Use (MU-3C) 
zone and associated development standards. 
 

b) That the proposed development is not located between the sea (or the 
shoreline of any body of water located within the coastal zone) and the first 
public road paralleling the sea, and is in conformity with the public access 
and public recreation policies of Chapter 3 of Division 20 of the Public 
Resources Code (commencing with Section 30200). 
 

c) That the decision-making body has complied with any CEQA 
responsibilities it may have in connection with the project, and that, in 
approving the proposed development, the decision-making body is not 
violating any CEQA prohibition that may exist on approval of projects for 
which there is a less environmentally damaging alternative or a feasible 
mitigation measure available. 

 
4. Vesting Tentative Parcel Map No. 74219 is consistent with the Comprehensive 

General Plan of the City.  
 
5. The plans, specifications and drawings submitted with the applications have 

been reviewed by the Planning Commission, and are approved.  
 

6. Pursuant to Chapter 3, Title 10 of the Redondo Beach Municipal Code, the 
project is exempt from the preparation of environmental documents pursuant to 
Section 15332 of the Guidelines for Implementation of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 
7. The Planning Commission hereby finds that the proposed project will have no 

effect on fish and game resources pursuant to Section 21089(b) of the Public 
Resources Code. 

 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
REDONDO BEACH DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That based on the above findings, the Planning Commission does hereby 
approve the Exemption Declaration and grant the Conditional Use Permit, Planning 
Commission Design Review, Coastal Development Permit, and Vesting Tentative 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 4 

Parcel Map No. 74219 pursuant to the plans and applications considered by the 
Planning Commission at its meeting of the 16th day of June, 2016. 
 
Section 2.  This permit shall be void in the event that the applicant does not comply with 
the following conditions: 
 

1. That the approval granted herein is for the construction of a mixed-use project 
with twelve (12) residential apartment units, approximately 6,000 square feet of 
commercial development, 1,900 square of public open space with 54 on-site 
parking spaces in substantial compliance with the plans approved by Planning 
Commission on June 16, 2016. 

 
2. The precise architectural treatment of the building exterior, roof, walks, walls, 

and driveways shall be in substantial conformance with the plans and 
color/material board presented to the Planning Commission on June 16, 2016. 
 

3. The applicant shall continue to work with the Planning Division to provide a 
more detailed set of sign plans that specify the use of materials, colors and 
fonts, mounting specifications as well appropriate sizes and locations. The sign 
programs shall be approved by the Planning Division prior to issuance of 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
4. There shall be a minimum of three (3) designated electric vehicle charging 

spaces located in the subterranean garage. 
 

5. The project shall provide a communal residential bicycle storage area, 
approximately 200 square feet in size to be located on the subterranean level of 
the project, and bicycle racks for five (5) or six (6) bicycles at the south-west 
corner on the first floor of the project for use by commercial patrons. The 
landscape plans need to be revised so as to allow for the location of the public 
bicycle racks as proposed. 
 

6. The applicant shall provide a detailed security / crime prevention plan based on 
the principles of ‘Crime Prevention through Environmental Design’ (CPTED) for 
review and approval by the City’s Police Department. The approval of a security 
/ crime prevention plan by the Police Department shall be required prior to the 
issuance of a building permit for the project. 

 
7. The project shall include the following green building design features, unless 

they can be determined to be infeasible by the Community Developer Director. 
These shall include, but are not limited to:  

 

 Short-term and long-term locking bike storage at garage for employees and 
residents at first floor for commercial patrons; 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 5 

 Stormwater harvesting for landscape drip irrigation; 

 Use of sunshades and large overhangs at south facing elevations to minimize 
solar heat gain; 

 Radiant heating and high efficiency air conditioning units; 

 Solar array installations at flat roofs for both commercial and residential uses; 

 High efficiency on demand hot water heaters for residences; 

 Extensive daylight harvesting to minimize use of electricity during peak 
daylight hours; 

 Courtyard at residences improves natural ventilation for all units; 

 All landscaping and irrigation appropriate for low or medium water usage; and 

 Operable windows and doors allow for natural ventilation at both commercial 
and residential areas. 

 
8. The applicant shall provide complete landscaping plans including planting 

details and irrigations plans pursuant to the requirements of the Assembly Bill 
(AB) 1881, the Water Conservation in Landscaping Act of 2006 (Laird). 

 
9. The project applicant shall meet the requirements of the City’s Public Art 

Ordinance as stipulated in the applicable Sections of Chapter 6, under Title 10, 
that contained in the City’s Planning and Zoning regulations and development 
standards prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for mixed-use 
project on the subject property. 

 
10. The Vesting Parcel Map shall be recorded within 36-months of the effective date 

of this resolution, unless an extension is granted pursuant to law.  If said map is 
not recorded within said 36-month period, or any extension thereof, the map 
shall be null, void, and of no force and effect. 

 
11. That the approved Low Impact Design (LID) Plan shall be included on the final 

plans and implemented during construction and the operation of the project. 
 

12. That prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall enter 
into an Affordable Housing Agreement with the City to provide and deed restrict 
two (2) dwelling units in accordance with Government Code Section 65590-
65590 and Section 50093 of the Health and Safety Code. The recorded 
Affordable Housing Agreement shall be binding on all future owners and 
successors in interest. 

 
13. That the applicant shall make a 5’-0’ wide alley dedication. This dedication shall 

be approved and recorded prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

14. The existing sidewalk extension that projects into the public street shall be 
removed, repaved and striped as per the requirements of the City’s Public 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 6 

Works Department. This work shall be completed prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
15. The applicant shall provide on-site erosion protection for the storm drainage 

system during construction, to the satisfaction of the Engineering Department. 
 

16. The applicants and/or their successors shall maintain the subject property in a 
clean, safe, and attractive state until construction commences.   

 
17. In the event of a disagreement in the interpretation and/or application of these 

conditions, the issue shall be referred back to the Planning Commission for a 
decision prior to the issuance of a building permit.  The decision of the Planning 
Commission shall be final. 

 
18. All on-site litter and debris shall be collected daily. 

 
19. Construction work shall occur only between the hours of 7 a.m. and 6 p.m. on 

Monday through Friday, between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. on Saturday, with no work 
occurring on Sunday and holidays. 
 

20. Material storage on public streets shall not exceed 48-hours per load. 
 

21. The project developer and/or general contractor shall be responsible for 
counseling and supervising all subcontractors and workers to ensure that 
neighbors are not subjected to excessive noise, disorderly behavior, or abusive 
language. 
 

22. Barriers shall be erected to protect the public where streets and/or sidewalks are 
damaged or removed. 

 
23. Streets and sidewalks adjacent to job sites shall be clean and free of debris. 

 
24. If archaeological or paleontological resources are encountered during ground-

disturbing activities, work on the subject property shall halt and an archaeologist 
meeting the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualifications Standards for 
archaeology (National Park Service 1983) or a paleontologist meeting the 
Society of Vertebrate Paleontology standards for a Qualified Professional 
Paleontologist (SVP 2010) shall be contacted immediately to evaluate the find. If 
the discovery proves to be an archaeological or paleontological resource, 
additional work such as data recovery excavation may be warranted pursuant to 
CEQA Section 21083.2. After the find has been appropriately mitigated, work in 
the area may resume. A Native American representative should monitor any 
archaeological field work associated with Native American materials 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 7 

25. The Planning Division shall be authorized to approve minor changes to any of 
the Conditions of Approval.  
 

26. That the project shall comply with all applicable codes, local ordinances, 
regulations and requirements and obtain all necessary permits from the 
Community Development Department, Public Works Department and the Fire 
Department. 

 
27. That the project shall adhere to all adopted state codes and local ordinances in 

regards to accessibility requirements.   
 

28. In the event of a disagreement in the interpretation and/or application of these 
conditions, the issue shall be referred back to the Planning Commission for a 
decision.  The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final. 
 

29. That entertainment should be restricted to the interior of the commercial 
establishments. No noise or amplified sound shall be audible beyond the 
property lines of the subject property.   
 

30. The restaurants requesting the ability to serve alcoholic beverages shall be 
restricted so that the quarterly gross sales of alcoholic beverages shall not 
exceed the gross sales of food during the same period.  
 

31. All establishments requesting to serve alcoholic beverages shall be subject to all 
regulations designated and approved by the State of California Department of 
Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC). 

 
 
Section 3.  That the approved Conditional Use Permit, Planning Commission Design 
Review, and Coastal Development Permit shall become null and void if not vested 
within 36 months after the Planning Commission’s approval. 
 
Section 4.  That, prior to seeking judicial review of this resolution, the applicant is 
required to appeal to the City Council.  The applicant has ten days from the date of 
adoption of this resolution in which to file the appeal. 
 
FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission forward a copy of this resolution 
to the City Council so the Council will be informed of the action of the Planning 
Commission. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06-PCR-*** 
219 AVENUE I 
PAGE NO. 8 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 16th day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 

   ________________________ 
       Doug Rodriquez, Chair 
       Planning Commission 
       City of Redondo Beach 
 
ATTEST: 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA          ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES   )      SS 
CITY OF REDONDO BEACH   ) 
 
I, Aaron Jones, Community Development Director of the City of Redondo Beach, 
California, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-06-PCR-*** was 
duly passed, approved and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of 
Redondo Beach, California, at a regular meeting of said Planning Commission held on 
the 16th day of June, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:         
 
NOES:         
 
ABSENT:    
 

ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Aaron Jones 
Community Development Director 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Attorney’s Office 

















































219 AVENUE I COMMUNITY OUTREACH REPORT  
Meeting Summary by Ryan Fischvogt, Tomaro Design Group 

 
1. A community outreach meeting was held at Bottega Romano restaurant at 215 

Avenue I on May 31st, 2016 between the 10:30 a.m. and 12:00 .pm. Renderings, 
building plans, and building elevations we displayed for review and comment by 
the attendees.  A formal agenda was not created, as neighbors came by on 
their own time during the hour and a half to ask questions at their convenience. 

 
2. Number of Attendees: 12 

a. 11 attendees were business owners located in the 300’ radius - legal noticing 
area. 

b. 1 residential neighbor who resides in at 215 Avenue I also attended the 
meeting. 
 

3. Areas of Concern: 
a. No notable concerns were voiced during the community outreach meeting.  

The business owners in the area were impressed with the design and stated 
that they look forward to the approval of the project.  The owner/operator of 
Dennee’s furniture, the current 219 Avenue I tenant, indicated that he may 
consider occupying the new retail spaces in the future, if the project as 
designed is approved. 
 

4. Description of Discussion 
a. Most of the discussion revolved around the function and layout of the 

building. The items discussed are below, in no particular order: 
i. Parking access was explained.  The subterranean parking is accessed via 

the current 215 Ave. I ramp using an easement and the 10 residential 
garages at the first floor are accessed via the alley.  It was also discussed 
that a security gate would be added to the 215 parking garage entrance. 

ii. The open courtyard/public open space was presented as both a city 
requirement as well as major highlight for the retail and restaurant spaces 
proposed.  The business owners occupying 215 Ave. I liked the link 
between our central courtyard and their existing walkway. 

iii. We discussed the various programmatic elements of the building and how 
they were organized within the building, explaining that the residential and 
commercial uses were kept separate.  The residential use is to the rear of 
property and the commercial uses are located at the front of the building.  

iv. The building and design were well received; local business owners are 
excited to see new development happening in the Riviera. 

 
5. Pending Inquires 

There is one pending inquiry from a neighbor who was not able to attend the 
meeting.  Karen Lyons of Riviera Center Management contacted us about 
viewing the design.  The owner is reaching out to her to discuss the design and 
show her the plans. 













































Link to CIP document 

 

 

http://www.redondo.org/civica/filebank/blobdload.asp?BlobID=30446

	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	06.16.16 P.C. Agenda
	Affidavit of Posting 06 16 16



	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Item 5 PC Minutes 05 19 16



	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Item 6 Strategic Plan
	10111406012016012712576.PD




	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Item 6 Strategic Plan
	101115060120160127228.PD




	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	08 Complete Agenda Item 182nd 2907 CUP amend 06 16 16
	PC Staff Report 182nd  2907 Micro-Brew Expansion 6 16 16




	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	08 Complete Agenda Item 182nd 2907 CUP amend 06 16 16
	Application 182nd 2907 CUP amendment brewery




	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	08 Complete Agenda Item 182nd 2907 CUP amend 06 16 16
	Submittal materials 182nd 2907 CUP amendment brewery




	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	08 Complete Agenda Item 182nd 2907 CUP amend 06 16 16
	Drawings 182nd 2907 CUP amendment brewery




	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	09 Complete Agenda Item Kingsdale 1306 CUP 06 16 16
	PC Staff Report Kingsdale 1306 CUP Baseball 6 16 16
	image2016-06-01-112153
	image2016-06-01-111837





	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	09 Complete Agenda Item Kingsdale 1306 CUP 06 16 16
	Applications Kingsdale 1306 CUP Baseball 6 16 16




	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	BF all PCH 600 N
	BF 2 for PCH 600 N memo to continue 06 16 16
	BF 1 for PCH 600 N 06 16 16
	BF 2 for PCH 600 N 06 16 16

	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	Complete Agenda Packet 06 16 16
	10 Complete Agenda Item PCH 600 N 06 16 16
	10 Complete Agenda Item PCH 600 N 06 16 16
	PC Staff Report PCH 600 N CUP Vehicle Sales 6 16 16
	PC Reso PCH 600 N CUP auto sales 6 16 16 FINAL
	Applications PCH 600 N CUP auto sales

	Drawings PCH 600 N CUP auto sales


	11 Complete Agenda Item Ave I 219 MU Project 06 16 16
	11 Complete Agenda Item Ave I 219 MU Project 06 16 16
	PC Staff Report 219 Ave I 6 16 16
	PC Reso Draft Ave I 219 MU project
	Applications Ave I 219 Mixed Use Project 06 16 16
	Narrative Ave I 219 MU project
	Narrative Ave I 219 MU project

	Neighbor Meeting Materials
	Neighbor Meeting Packet
	Sign-in


	Trip Generation and Traffic Study Ave I 219 Mixed Use Project 2016
	image2016-05-14-104355
	image2016-05-14-104446
	image2016-05-14-104355


	Drawings for upload Ave I 219 MU project
	Drawings Ave I 219 Mixed Use Project 06 16 16



	Link to CIP document




